

Heritage Citation



Coorparoo Bowls Club

Key details

Addresses	At 32 Riddings Street, Coorparoo, Queensland 4151
Type of place	Club house, Sportsground
Period	Interwar 1919-1939
Style	Bungalow
Lot plan	L56_SL4245; L1_RP107835
Key dates	Local Heritage Place Since — 1 January 2011 Date of Citation — June 2009
Construction	Roof: Tile; Walls: Timber

People/associations	Maurice James Guthrie (Architect); W. Ewart (Builder)
Criterion for listing	(A) Historical: (G) Social

The Coorparoo Bowls Club is a fine example of an interwar sporting facility built wholly for and by the Coorparoo community. The first green was laid in 1930 closely followed by the building of the clubhouse. The timber clubhouse was designed by Brisbane architect Maurice James Guthrie and built by Coorparoo builder W. Ewart. The second green was laid in 1931. The Coorparoo Bowls Club has continuously served the Coorparoo sporting and social community since 1930.

History

The initial settlement of the area now known as Coorparoo was relatively slow. Coorparoo land sales occurred from 1856, gradually development occurred with mainly farmers and land speculators purchasing land at these early sales. By 1888, the locality had a population in excess of 2,000 people in over 550 homes. The population growth in the area saw ribbon development along the main transport arteries of Logan Road and Old Cleveland Road; pocket development in areas such as Stones Corner; with the wealthier residents living on the hill tops especially along the Cavendish Road ridgeline.

From the mid 1870s the population of Brisbane increased markedly and a rise in residential settlement began to occur. Brisbane's population had grown to 47, 000 by 1881. It was during the 1880s that the greatest changes to the residential settlement patterns occurred. This was due to several factors including an expanding economy, expansion of infrastructure including extended tram and train services, improved communication systems, and an increase in immigration to Brisbane. By 1891 Brisbane's population had increased to over 100, 000.

By the 1890s, the Stones Corner and Coorparoo area included a socio-economic mix that ranged from farmers to politicians. These included Frederick Brentnall M.L.C., James Stodart M.L.A. and Walter Henry Barnes M.L.A., business men such as Nathaniel Lade, James Hipwood and Reuben Nicklin and important public servants such as Edward Deshon C.M.G., Reginald Mulholland King, James Evan Burstall and T.W. Connah. Coorparoo, while not distant from the city, was a semi-rural area until the 1910s. Then the population began to increase rapidly due to the extension of the tramline to Stones Corner in 1915.

The initial idea for a bowls club in Coorparoo occurred prior to the First World War when Messrs. Smout and Mr. Smith began to form a committee for the creation of a bowls club. Due to the war this became less of a priority for the Coorparoo community. It was not until 1929 that the concept was once again adopted. The first meeting to discuss the possibility of establishing a bowls club in the area was held in September of that year at the Coorparoo School of Arts and was attended by several prominent Coorparoo residents, including W.L. Nicklin and Dr. Betchel. After several smaller meetings at Nicklin's house in Shakespeare Street it was decided that a public meeting was necessary to officially form a club. This was held on the 28 October, 1929 at the School of Arts. From this meeting forty-nine members enrolled with ?1015 being raised as subscriptions. Dr. Betchel was elected as the first club president.

With the revenue raised by community members the next step toward a bowls facility was the purchase of land.

After negotiations with the Harries Estate owner, Mr. Harries, a portion of land totalling one acre and sixty-four perches was purchased at ?810/7/0 on the corner of Harries and Riddings Street, Coorparoo.

In 1930 the construction of the first green occurred, measuring 125ft by 120ft, and this was surrounded by a newly constructed wire fence. In July 1930 the application for the construction of the clubhouse was approved. The design of the timber building was by Maurice James Guthrie, a respected Brisbane architect in the interwar period. If it were not for the generosity of Bill Nicklin the clubhouse may not have been built in so timely a fashion. Bill Nicklin was the son of Reuben Nicklin, a prominent early pioneer in Coorparoo, their family home was 'Langland's', now part of Villanova College. Bill Nicklin, a successful timber merchant, played an important role in the Coorparoo community. An example of this was his advancement of funds for the construction of the clubhouse. By October 1930, at a total cost of ?1455, the clubhouse was completed. The clubhouse was built by W. Ewart, a Coorparoo carpenter. In December 1930 the bowls club was officially opened by President of the Queensland Bowling Association, Mr. George Rees.

As membership numbers grew it became necessary to lay another green and by October 1931 this had been achieved. Within the clubhouse two silky oak honour boards were erected to record the names of past presidents and singles champions. A third honour board was erected in 1938 recording the patrons of the club. The first names placed on this board were Hon. R. M. King and Mr. W. L. Nicklin. The flagstaff was also raised in 1938. In 1940 the two one rink greens were constructed. In 1954 the various greens were named, with a naming ceremony being held on 30 October. The greens were named in honour of members Bill Nicklin, Joe Rees, John Watson and Jack Sibbald.

The front extension was built in 1977 at a cost of \$50,000. The Coorparoo Bowls Club is an important sporting facility in the area and has been since its inception in the interwar period.

Statement of significance

Relevant assessment criteria

This is a place of local heritage significance and meets one or more of the local heritage criteria under the Heritage planning scheme policy of the *Brisbane City Plan 2014*. It is significant because:

Historical

CRITERION A

The place is important in demonstrating the evolution or pattern of the city's or local area's history

as an intact interwar bowls club that was founded by several prominent Coorparoo residents including W.L. Nicklin.

Social

CRITERION G

The place has a strong or special association with the life or work of a particular community or cultural group for social, cultural or spiritual reasons

as a sporting facility built for and by the Coorparoo community during the Great Depression.

References

- 1. Historic Titles, Department of Natural Resources and Water
- 2. Queensland Post Office Directories
- 3. Metropolitan Water and Sewerage Survey Maps 1949
- 4. Watson, Donald and Judith McKay. A Directory of Queensland Architects to 1940. (St. Lucia: U of Q Press, 1984)
- 5. Coorparoo, Stones Corner Centenary, 1856 1956, Printed by The Courier Mail, 1956

Copyright Brisbane City Council

Note: This citation has been prepared on the basis of evidence available at the time including an external examination of the building. The statement of significance is a summary of the most culturally important aspects of the property based on the available evidence, and may be re-assessed if further information becomes available. The purpose of this citation is to provide an informed evaluation for heritage registration and information. This does not negate the necessity for a thorough conservation study by a qualified practitioner, before any action is taken which may affect its heritage significance.

